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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of RAK Ceramics (Bangladesh) Limited
Report on the Audit of the consolidated financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of RAK Ceramics (Bangladesh) Limited
(the Group) which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give true and fair view, in
all material respects, of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in Bangladesh, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters (KAM)

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022,
These matters were addressed in the context of the audit of the consolidated financial statements
as a whole, and in forming the auditor’s opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the
matter is provided in that context.
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SL | Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Revenue recognition (Refer to notes 3.

statements)

15 and 25 to these Consolidated financial

The Group recognizes revenue when
control of the goods is transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the
net consideration, which the Group
expects to receive from customers. In
determining the sales price, the Group
considers the effect of commission,
incentive, bonus and discounts (variable
consideration).

The terms of sales agreements, including
the timing of transfer of control, based on
the terms of relevant contract and nature
of commission, incentive, bonus and
discounts arrangements, create
complexities that requires judgement in
determining sales revenues.

Considering the above factors and the risk
associated with revenue recognition, we
have determined the same to be a key
audit matter.

Our audit procedures included the following:

1) We read the Group's revenue recognition
policy and assessed its compliance in
terms of IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from
contracts with customers’;

2) Performed sample tests of individual
sales transactions and traced to sales
invoices, sales orders and other related
documents. In respect of the samples
selected, we tested recognition of
revenue based on underlying sales
invoices, sales orders and other related
documents;

3) We selected a sample of invoices on
which rebates and discounts were given
and obtained the rebates and discount
schemes approved by the management.
We noted the accounting of commission,
incentive, bonus and discounts by the
Group for the selected sample;

4) Selected samples of sales transactions
made pre and post year end, agreed the
date of transfer of control for the selected
sample by testing underlying documents
including customers confirmation; and

5) Assessed the relevant disclosures made
within the consolidated financial
statements.
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SL | Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit

matter

Tax and regulatory matters (Refer to notes 3.22 and 43 to these Consolidated

financial statements)

The Group has several pending corporate
tax assessments and legal proceedings
with Government revenue authorities
related to claims for tax, VAT and custom
duty. The pending cases expose the
Company to significant litigation and
similar risks arising from many disputes
and regulatory proceedings. Such matters
are subject to many uncertainties, and the
outcomes may not be appropriate to
predict.

These uncertainties inherently may affect
the amount and timing of potential cash
outflows with respect to tax provisions and
contingent liabilities related to tax, VAT
and custom duty.

As listed entity, the Group also has to
maintain compliance requirements of the
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission.

Our audit procedures included the following:

1) We obtained an understanding, evaluated
the design and tested operational
effectiveness of the Group’s key control
on tax provision and contingencies.

2) We enquired to those charged with
governance to obtain their view on the
status of all significant litigations and
regulatory matters;

3) We enquired of the Group's internal legal
counsel for all significant litigations and
regulatory matters and inspected internal
hotes and report. We also received formal
confirmation from external counsel;

4) We assessed the methodologies on which
provision and contingencies are based
and recalculated the provision and tested
the completeness and accuracy of the
underlying information; and

5) We also assessed the disclosures on the
Group’s provisions and contingent
liabilities.
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36.1(b) to these Consolidated financial statements)

SL | Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit
matter
3 | credit risks and impairment on trade receivables (Refer to notes 3.10, 3.14 and

The amount of trade receivables covers
14% (2021: 11%) of total current assets.
The pandemic situation has positioned
many business organizations in the
financial stress and as a result, the risks of
being default in payment of debts by the

stressed customers increases
significantly.
The significant amount of trade

receivables of the Group is attributable to
a single customer which is also a related
party as disclosed in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements to the
Group. Being the related party, there may
be financial transactions that lack in the
criteria of arm’s length transaction.

Significant amount of judgment is to be
applied to determine the risk of default by
the customers over the expected life of
trade receivables which may have material
impact on trade receivables and as a
result, there is risk of error in determining
the allowance for impairment on trade
receivables.

Considering the above factors and the risk
associated with the determination of
impairment allowance on trade
receivables, we have determined the same
to be a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included the following:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

We tested the receivable balances
compared those with the results obtained
from external confirmations.

We inspected the arrangements, security
documents, credibility assessments and
correspondences with parties concerned to
assess the recoverability of significant long
outstanding receivables;

We enquired of the Group's internal legal
counsel for all significant litigations and
regulatory matters and inspected internal
notes and report. We also received formal
confirmation from external counsel;

We reviewed the calculation of impairment
allowance on trade receivables as per IFRS
9; and

We also assessed the disclosures on the
trade receivables as per IFRS 9.
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4 Property, plant and equipment (Refer to notes 3.5 and 4 to these consolidated
financial statements).

The property, plant and equipment | Our audit procedures included the following:
balance comprises 22% (2021: 20%) of
total assets. This amounts to BDT 3,263 | 1) Obtained the useful lives and confirmed
million (2021: BDT 2,800 million) as that this was reviewed and considered in
shown in note 4, the year under review;

Judgement is exercised in determining [2) We have reviewed the judgments and

the useful lives and when assessing methodology applied by management
| whether there are any indicators of including the nature of underlying costs
impairment exist and when performing capitalized, determination of realizable
impairment assessments where value of the assets retired from active use,
indicators have been identified. technical assessment conducted in

: assessing the useful life of assets;
Based on the value of the property, plant

and equipment as well as the judgements |3) Assessed whether indicators of
involved in determining useful lives, this impairment existed at 31 December 2022
has been identified as a key audit matter. based on our knowledge of the business

and the industry; and

4) Assessed the relevant disclosures made
within the financial statements.

Other information included in the Group’s 31 December 2022 Annual Report

Other information consists of the information included in the Group's 31 December 2022 Annual
Report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. We
obtained Director’s Report, Management Discussion and Analysis, five years financial
information, and Corporate Governance report prior to the date of our auditor’s report, and we
expect to obtain the remaining reports of the Annual Report after the date of our auditor’s report.
Management is responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on
the other information obtained prior to the date of the auditor’s report, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group in accordance with IFRSs, the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and
Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group, management is responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements of the Group as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements
, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.




wv EC A.QASEM & CO.

BANGLADESH Chartered Accountants Since 1953

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act 1994 and the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, we
also report the following:

i) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;

ii) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group so
far as it appeared from our examination of these books;

iiil) the consolidated statement of financial position and consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books
of account and returns; and

iv) the expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the Group’s business.

A. Qasem & Co.
- Chartered Accountants
RJSC Registration No.: 2-PC7202

M im0 Y

Mohammad Motaleb Hossain FCA
Partner
Enrolment Number: 0950

25 January 2023




RAK Ceramics (Bangladesh) Ltd.
Consolidated statement of financial position

as at 31 December 2022

Notes

Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment property
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets
Capital work-in-progress
Total non-current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Advances, deposits and prepayments
Advance income tax
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets
Total assets

Equity
Share capital
Share premium

Retalned earnings
Equity attributable to equity holders of the company

Non-controlling interests
Total equity

Liabilities
Deferred tax liability

Lease liability
Total non-current liabilities

Borrowings
Lease liability
Trade and other payables
Unclaimed dividend payable
Accrued expenses
Provision for Income tax
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

o~NO UL DN

14
15
16

17
20

19
20
21
22
23
24

2022 2021

Taka Taka
3,263,124,297 2,799,893,949
503,012,247 503,234,165
25,127,649 13,852,546
675,942 2,025,755
155,705,038 17,713,837
3,947,645,173 3,336,720,252
3,404,569,828 2,989,795,940
1,524,574,050 1,227,006,049
299,208,628 311,692,999
4,100,140,671 3,865,788,064
1,275,774,291 2,276,654,664
10,604,267,468 10,670,937,716
14,551,912,641 14,007,657,968
4,279,687,010 4,279,687,010
1,473,647,979 1,473,647,979
1,883,817,400 1,747,192,779
7,637,152,389 7,500,527,768
1,336 1,418
7,637,153,725 7,500,529,186
108,058,703 139,829,250
13,155,601 4,904,896
121,214,304 144,734,146
372,805,793 430,408,117
5,427,646 4,809,657
1,048,213,664 885,084,814
11,901,967 11,764,448
833,246,587 758,212,444
4,521,948,955 4,272,115,156
6,793,544,612 6,362,394,636
6,914,758,916 6,507,128,782
14,551,912,641 14,007,657,9G8

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of same date
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A. Qasem & Co.
Chartered Accountants
RJSC Registration No.: 2-PC7202
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Chairman
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Mohammad Motaleb Hossain FCA

Partner
Enrolment Number: 0950

25 January 2023

Sadhan Kumar Dey
Chief Financial Officer

SAK Ekramuzzaman
Managing Director

Pramod Kumar Chand

Director

Muhammad Shahidul Islam FCS
Company Secretary




RAK Ceramics (Bangladesh) Ltd.

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Notes

Sales 25
Cost of sales 26
Gross profit
Other income 27
Administrative expenses 28
Impairment loss on trade receivables 28.1
Marketing and selling expenses 29
Profit from operating activities
Finance income 30
Finance expenses 31
Net finance income
Profit before contribution to workers'
profit participation and welfare fund
Contribution to workers' profit participation and welfare fund 32
Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Current tax 33

Deferred tax 17
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the company
Non-controlling interests
Profit after tax for the year
Basic earnings per share (Par value TK 10) 39

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of same date

bdallah Massaad
Chairman

SAK Ekramuzzaman
Managing Director

A. Qasem & Co.
Chartered Accountants
RJSC Registration No,: 2-PC7202

M= 0 K

Mohammad Motaleb Hossain FCA
Partner
Enrolment Number: 0950

Sadlondey-

Sadhan Kumar Dey
Chief Financial Officer

25 January 2023

2022
Taka

7,453,465,494
(5,483,544,470)

2021
Taka

6,851,136,685
(4,818,277,683)

1,969,921,024

100
(347,982,610)
(2,928,652)
(623,919,697)

2,032,859,002

50
(333,244,125)
(275,532)
(523,744,007)

(974,830,859)

(857,263,614)

995,090,165

48,912,214
(109,274,503)

1,175,595,388

44,817,209
(10,390,323)

(60,362,289)

34,426,886

934,727,876
(45,079,009)

1,210,022,274
(55,919,793)

889,648,867

(249,833,799)
31,770,547

1,154,102,481

(300,848,645)
51,932,051

(218,063,252)

(248,916,594)

671,585,615

905,185,887

671,585,615

905,185,887

671,585,497

905,185,683

118 204
671,585,615 905,185,887
1.57 2,12

Pramod Kumar Chand
Director

Muhammad Shahidul Islam FCS
Company Secretary




34

‘sjuBWale]s [eldueul asay] Jo Jed jeabajul ue aue sajou Buifueduwodde ay |

STL'EST'LE97L 9€EE’T 68E'CST'LE97L 00v’'218°€88"T 6.6 LV9'ELV'T 0T10°7/89°6/Z'V Z20¢ 19qusdag £ je se aduejeg
(9£0'196"PES) (002) (9£8°096"€5) (9£8°096'¥£S) - - (1202) puapiAIp ysed
siap|oyaleys syl yiim suoidesued |
ST19'685’1/9 81T L6%'S8S'T/9 L6%'S85°1/9 - - Je9A 33 10} Jijold
2207 104 dWOodU} dAjsusya1duwiod jejo].
981°625°00S'L STH'T 897775005, 64L'C26TLYL'T 6L6°LVY'SLY'T 010°£89°642'V 2207 Menuer 10 3e se sduejeg
981°625°00S°L SIP'T 897725005, 6LLT6T (VLT 6L67LY9'SLYT 010°289°6Z2"F TZ0Z 1oquadag T€ Je se sduejeg
(108'896°/2%) (oo1) (10£'896"22%) (104’896°L2V) - - (0z02) puspialp used
Siapjoyaieys syl yim suondesued |
£88'S81°S06 02 £89°681°506 £89'S81°506 - - 1224 3y3 JoJ Jyoid
1202 104 awodu] dAIsuayasdwod 2101
00T’21E'€20'L pIe't 98/’'0T£’€20L L6£'S467697'T 6/6'LY9'SLY'T 010'£89°642'V TZ0TZ Alenuer 10 je se aduejeg
(91 - =10N) (ST - ?10N) (¥T - 910N)
e)el ee] el el BYeL ee]
Auedwo)
s3seo.o]ul
Ajnba Builiod :mu a3 jo s1duUmMo sbuluies winiwdad jeyded
|e301 M_:o“_ 03 s|qeanqupe pauieay aleys sieys

iejol

Aueduwio) 943 jJo sidumo 0] 3|qernqiiny

© TZTOT 12quiada( TE popus 1eal oY) Jo4
Anbs u1 ssbueyd j0 JusWD}e}S PaIePI|oSU0)

P11 (ysepejbueg) sonwelsd) v



RAK Ceramics (Bangladesh) Ltd.

Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash receipts from customers
Cash payments to suppliers and employees
Cash generated from operating activities

Interest received from bank deposits
Income tax paid (note - 12)
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities (note-42)

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Sale of property, plant and equipment (note-5.3)
Interest received from FDR

Income from rental

Intangible assets

Dividend received

Net cash (used in)/from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Finance charges

Avail/(repayment) of short-term loan

Payment of lease liability

Dividend paid

Unclaimed share application refund

Adjustment related with non-controlling interest
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes in cash and cash equivalents
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as at 01 January

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December (Note 13)

2,276,654,664

2022 2021
Taka Taka
7,150,436,892 6,627,974,761
(6,304,309,331) (5,776,542,072)
846,127,561 851,432,689
7,642,696 8,553,389
(234,352,607) (277,128,389)
619,417,650 582,857,689
(1,045,896,573) (132,428,540)
497,560 3,332,000
46,730,120 40,649,943
- 570,000
- (450,000)
100 50
(998,668,793) (88,326,547)
(23,303,829) (5,095,764)
(57,602,324) 310,467,212
(7,110,461) (6,074,925)
(534,823,358) (465,780,393)
- (748,800)
o (200) (100)
(622,840,172) (167,232,770)
1,210,942 161,452
(1,000,880,373) 327,459,824

1,949,194,840

1,275,774,291

2,276,654,664

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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1.1

1.2

RAK Ceramics (Bangladesh) Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

Reporting entity

RAK Ceramics (Bangladesh) Limited (the Company), formerly RAK Ceramics (Bangladesh) Pvt. Limited, a UAE-
Bangladesh joint venture company, was incorporated in Bangladesh on 26 November 1998 as a private
company limited by shares under the Companies Act 1994, The Company was later converted from a private
limited into a public limited on 10 June 2008 after observance of required formalities as per laws. The name of
the Company was thereafter changed to RAK Ceramics (Bangladesh) Ltd. as per certificate issued by the
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies dated 11 February 2009. The address of the Company’s registered office is
RAK Tower, Plot # 1/A, Jasimuddin Avenue, Sector # 3, Uttara, Dhaka 1230. The company got listed with
Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE) and Chittagong Stock Exchange (CSE) on 13 June 2010,

Nature of business

The Company Is engaged in manufacturing and marketing of ceramics tiles, wash room sets and all types of
sanitary ware, It has started its commercial production on 12 November 2000. The commercial production of its
new sanitary ware plant, expansion unit of ceramics facilities, tiles and sanitary plant was started on 10 January
2004, 1 July 2004,1 September 2007, 1 April 2015 and 17th May 2016 respectively.

Description of subsidiaries

RAK Power Pvt. Ltd.

RAK Power Pvt, Ltd. has been incorporated in Bangladesh under the Companies Act 1994 on 30 June 2005 as a
private company limited by shares with an authorized capital of Taka 1,000,000,000 divided into 10,000,000
ordinary shares of Taka 100 each. The paid up capital stands at Taka 205,000,000 at the end of reporting
period. The Company has gone into operation from 1 May 2009, The registered office of the Company is at RAK
Tower (8th floor), Jashimuddin Avenue, Plot # 1/A, Sector # 03, Uttara Model Town, Dhaka - 1230. The Power
Plant is located at Village : Dhanua, P.S: Sreepur, District: Gazipur. 57% shares of RAK Power Pvt. Ltd. is held
by RAK Ceramics (Bangladesh) Limited.

The Board of Directors of RAK Ceramics (Bangladesh) Limited in its meeting held on July 26, 2015 have decided
to further increase the shareholding in RAK Power Pvt. Ltd. from 57% to 99.99% through purchase of 881,495
number of ordinary shares of BDT 100 each In consideration of BDT 255 per share totaling to BDT 224,781,225
only from all the other shareholders of RAK Power Pvt. Ltd. subject to approval by the shareholders and
concerned authorities for the interest of the business of the Company. The shareholders of RAK Ceramics
(Bangladesh) Limited have approved the same in the EGM dated September 20, 2015.The effect of acquisition
has been taken place as approved in Board of Directors meeting of RAK Power (Pvt.) Ltd on 20 October 2015.

RAK Security and Services (Pvt.) Limited

RAK Security and Services (Pvt.) Ltd. has been incorporated in Bangladesh under the Companies Act 1994 on
21 December 2006 as a private company limited by shares with an authorized capital of Taka 100,000,000
divided into 1,000,000 ordinary shares of Taka 100 each. The paid up capital stands at Taka 1,000,000 at the
end of reporting period. The Company has gone into operation from 1 May 2007. The registered office of the
Company is at RAK Tower (8th floor), Plot # 1/A, Jasimuddin Avenue, Sector # 03, Uttara Model Town, Dhaka-
1230. 35% shares of RAK Security and Services (Pvt.) Ltd is held by RAK Ceramics (Bangladesh) Limited.

The Board of Directors of RAK Ceramics (Bangladesh) Limited in its meeting held on July 26, 2015 have decided
to further increase the shareholding in RAK Security & Services (Pvt,) Ltd. from 35% to 99.00% through
purchase of 6,500 number of ordinary shares of BDT 100 each in consideration of BDT 2,875 per share totaling
to BDT 18,687,500 only from all the other shareholders of RAK Security & Services (Pvt.) Ltd. subject to
approval by the shareholders and concerned authorities for the interest of the business of the Company. The
shareholders of RAK Ceramics (Bangladesh) Limited have approved the same in the EGM dated September 20,
2015. The effect of acquisition has been taken place as approved In Board of Directors meeting of RAK Security
and Services (Pvt.) Ltd on 20 October 2015.
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2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs), the Companies Act 1994 and the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987.

The title and format of these financial statements follow the requirements of IFRSs which are to some extent

different from the requirement of the Companies Act 1994. However, such differences are not material and in
the view of management IFRSs titles and format give better presentation to the shareholders.

Authorisation for issue

These financial statements have been authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 25
January 2023.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for inventories which are
measured at lower of cost and net realisable value.

Functional and presentational currency

These financial statements are presented in Bangladesh Taka (Taka/Tk/BDT), which is the functional currency
and presentation currency of the Company. The figures of financial statements have been rounded off to the

nearest Taka.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilitles, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any future years affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements
are stated in the following notes:

Note 4 Property, plant & equipment
Note 5 Investment property

Note 6 Right-of-use assets

Note 17 Deferred tax liability

Note 18 Employees benefit payable
Note 20 Lease liability

Note 24 Provision for income tax

Note 28,1 Impairment on trade receivable

Reporting period

The financial period of the Company covers one year from 1 January to 31 December each year and is followed
consistently.

Going concern

The Company has adequate resources to continue in operation for foreseeable future and hence, the financial
statements have been prepared on going concern basis. As per management assessment there are no material
uncertainties related to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern.
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3.1

3.2

a)

b)

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below, which comply with IFRSs, have been applied consistently to all years
presented in these consolidated financial statements, and have been applied consistently by Group entities.

Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements comprise the consolidated financial position and the consolidated results
of operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) on a line by line basis
together with the Group’s share in the net assets of its equity- accounted investees.

IFRS-10 "Consolidated Financial Statements” introduces a new control model that focuses on whether the group
has power over an investee, exposure or rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
ability to use its power to affect those returns. An investor has power over an investee when the investor has
existing rights that gives it the current ability to direct the relevant activities that significantly affect the
investee’s returns. Power arises from rights. An investor is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee when the investor’s returns from its involvement have the potential to vary as a
result of the investee’s performance. An investor controls an investee if the investor not only has the power
over the investee and exposure or rights to varlable returns from its involvement with the investee, but also has
the ablility to use its power to affect the investor’s return from its involvement with the investee.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are enterprises controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that are presently exercisable are taken into account. The results of operations and total
assets and liabllities of subsidiary companies are included in the consolidated financial statements on a line-by-
line basis and the interest of minority shareholders, if any, in the results and net assets of subsidiaries is stated
separately. The financial statement of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements of the
Group from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. Any gains or losses on
increase/decrease in non-controlling interest in subsidiaries without a change in control, is recognised as a
component of equity.

Loss of control

Upon the loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-controlling
interest and other components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of
control Is recognised in profit or loss. If the Group retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such
Iinterest is measured at fair value at the date that control is lost. Subsequently it is accounted for as an equity-
accounted investee or as an available-for-sale financial asset depending on the level of influence retained.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised gains arising from
transactions with equity-accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group's
interest in the investee, Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Financial assets

Trade & other receivables

Trade & other receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Such assets are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition trade & other receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment provision.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash In hand, cash at bank including short notice deposits and fixed
deposits having maturity of three months or less that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair
value, and are used by the Group in the management of its short-term commitments.




3.3

a)

b)

3.4

3.5

3.5.1

Financial liabilities
Trade & other payables

Trade & other payables are recognised initially at fair value less any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, trade & other payables are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings include short term bank loan. Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
falr value less any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares
are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects. Paid up share capital represents total amount
contributed by the shareholders and bonus shares issued by the Company to the ordinary shareholders. Holders
of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to vote at
shareholders' meetings. In the event of a winding up of the Company, ordinary shareholders rank after all other
shareholders and creditors and are fully entitled to any residual proceeds of liquidation,

Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the property, plant
and equipment, Maintenance, renewals and betterments that enhance the economic useful life of the property,
plant and equipment or that improve the capacity, quality or reduce substantially the operating cost or
administration expenses are capitalised by adding it to the related property, plant and equipment. Ongoing
repairs and maintenance is expensed as incurred.

An asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use and
subsequent disposal. Gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of an asset is determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised as gain or
loss from disposal of asset under other income in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income,

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis in profit or loss over the
estimated useful lives of each component. Capital-work-in-progress and land are not depreciated. Depreciation
on addition to fixed assets is charged when it is available for use and charging of depreciation on property, plant
and equipment ceases at the earliest of the date the assets is classified held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5
and the date that assets is derecognised.

Rates of depreciation on various classes of property, plant and equipment are as under:

Category of property, plant and equipment Rate (%)
Factory building 5-20
General building 5
Head Office building 5
Plant and machinery 5-10
Mobile plant 10
Electrical installation 10-20
Gas pipeline 10-20
Furniture, fixture and equipment 10
Office equipment 10-20
Communication equipment 10-20
Tools and appliances 10-20
Vehicles 10-20
Fire fighting equipment 20

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate, Land is not depreciated as it deemed to have an indefinite life.

16




3.6

3.6.1

3.7

3.8

3.9

Investment property

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including property
under construction for such purposes). Investment properties are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, If any. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment property. Maintenance, renewals and betterments that enhances the economic
useful life of the investment property or that improve the capacity, quality or reduce subsequently the operation
cost or administration expenses and capitalized by adding it to the related investment property. Ongoing repairs
and maintenance is expensed as incurred,

An Investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is Included in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income the period in
which the property Is derecognised.

Depreciation on investment property

Depreciation charged on the basis of straight line method. Depreciation continues to be charged on each item of
investment property until written value of such fixed asset is reduced to Taka one. Depreciation on addition to
fixed assets is charged when it Is available for use and charging of depreciation on property, plant, equipment &
investment property ceases at the earliest of the date the assets is classified held for sale in accordance with
IFRS 5 and the date that assets is derecognised.

Rates of depreciation on various classes of investment property are as under:

Category of property, plant and equipment Rate (%)
Building 5

Land is not depreciated as it deemed to have an infinite life.
Capital work-in-progress

Capital work in progress is stated at cost less impairment, if any, until the construction is completed. Upon
completion of construction, the cost of such assets together with the cost directly attributable to construction,
including capitalised borrowing costs are transferred to the respective class of asset. No depreciation is charged
on capital work in progress.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group (such as designs and trade marks for manufacture of ceramic
tiles and sanitary ware) have finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
specific asset to which it relates.

Intanglbie assets are amortised on a straight-line basis in profit or loss over their estimated useful lives of 2 to
3 years from the date that they are avallable for use.

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate. No internal developed intangible assets capitalized during the year.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on the
weighted average cost principle, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or
conversion costs, and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition. In the case
of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads
based on normal operating capacity. Materials in transit are valued at cost.

Net realisable value (NRV) is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated cost
of completion and any estimated costs necessary to make the sale,
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3.10 Impairment

3.11

Non-derivative financial assets

Non derivative financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine the loss allowance for lifetime
expected credit losses, if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When there is no significant increase in credit risk on the financial instruments since initial
recognition, the expected credit losses for next 12 months is measured as loss allowance on that financial
instrument,

Non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the non-financial assets, other than inventories are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the assets’
recoverable amounts are estimated. For intangible assets that have indefinite lives, recoverable amount is
estimated at each reporting date. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its
cash generating unit (CGU) exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects the current market assessment of the time value of money and risk specific to the
asset. For an asset that does not generate significantly independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

Recognition of impairment

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses in respect of CGUs are allocated first to
reduced the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to reduce the carrying amount of
other assets in the CGU on a pro-rata basis.

Reversal of impairment

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed onty
to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Employee benefit schemes

The Group maintains both defined contribution plan and defined benefit plan for its eligible permanent
employees. The eligibility is determined according to the terms and conditions set forth in the respective deeds.,

Defined contribution plan (Provident fund)

Defined contribution plan is a post employment benefit plan under which the Group provides benefits to one or
more employees. The recognised Employees Provident Fund is considered as defined contribution plan as it
meets the recognition criteria specified for this purpose. All permanent employees contribute 10 percent of their
basic salary to the provident fund and the Group also makes equal contribution to the fund, These are
administered by the Board of Trustees. The contributions are invested separately from the Group's assets.

Contribution to defined contribution plan is recognised as an expense when an employee has rendered services
to the Group. The legal and constructive obligation is limited to the amount it agrees to contribute to the fund.

Defined benefit plan (Gratuity)

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Group’s net
obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods.

Permanent employees are entitled to gratuity on the basis of his latest basic salary for a completed year of
service or for service for a period of more than six months, salary of minimum 30 days, or salary of 45 days for
a continuous service for more than ten years, it shall be in addition to any payment of compensation or
payment of any wage or allowance in lieu of notice due to termination of services of a worker on different
grounds. The expected cost of this benefit is included in respective annual statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income over the period of employment,
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3.12

3.13

3.14

Workers' Profit Participation Fund and Welfare Fund (WPPF)

The Company provides 5% of its net profit before tax after charging such expense as WPPF in accordance with
"The Bangladesh Labour Act 2006 amended in 2018".

Provisions

Provisions are recognised on the reporting date if, as a result of past events, the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments sets out requirements for recognising and measuring financlal assets, financial
llabilities and some contracts to buy or sell non-financial items including a new expected credit loss model for
calculating impairment of financial assets, and new general hedge accounting requirements,

I, Classification ~ financial assets

IFRS 9 contains a classification and measurement approach for financial assets that reflects the business model
in which assets are managed and their cash flow characteristics. IFRS 9 contains three principal classification
categories for financial assets: measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) and fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

il. Impairment

IFRS 9 introduces a forward-looking ‘expected credit loss’ (ECL) model. This will require considerable judgement
about how changes in economic factors affect ECLs, which will be determined on a probability-weighted basis.
The new impairment model will apply to financial assets measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, except for
investments In equity instruments, and to contract assets.

Under IFRS 9, loss allowances will be measured on either of the following bases:

. 12-months ECLs: these are ECLs which result from possible default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

. 12-Lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs which result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financlal instrument.

Lifetime ECL measurement applies if the credit risk of a financial asset at the reporting date has increased
significantly since initial recognition and 12-month ECL measurement applies if it has not. An entity may
determine that a financial asset’s credit risk has not increased significantly if the asset has low credit risk at the
reporting date. However, lifetime ECL measurement always applies for trade receivables and contract assets
without a significant financing component; the group has a choice to also apply this policy for trade receivables
and contract assets with a significant financing component.

The estimated ECL will be calculated based on actual credit loss experience. The group will perform the
calculation of ECL rates separately for different types of customers including related parties.

Actual credit losses will be adjusted to reflect differences between economic conditions during the period over
which the historical data will be collected, prevalent conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions
over the expected lives of the receivables and related party balances.

iii. Hedging

IFRS 9 incorporates hedge accounting rules which intend to align hedge accounting with a group’s risk
management objectives and strategy and to apply a more qualitative and forward looking approach to assessing
hedge effectiveness.

Impact of IFRS 9 shown in note no. 36.1 (b).




3.15

3.16

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is
recognized.

i. Sales of goods

Under IFRS 15, revenue will be recognised when a customer obtains control of the goods.

Revenue will be recognised for the contracts to the extent that it is probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur. As a consequence, for those contracts for which the
group is unable to make a reasonable estimate of return, revenue is expected to be recognised sooner than
when the return period lapses or a reasonable estimate can be made.

Based on the group’s assessment, the timing of revenue recognition from sale of goods are broadly similar.
Therefore, the group does not expect the application of IFRS 15 to result in significant differences in the timing
of revenue recognition for these sales,

ii. Rendering of services

Under IFRS 15, the total consideration in the service contracts will be allocated to all services based on their
stand-alone selling prices. The stand-alone selling prices will be determined based on the list prices at which the
group sells the services in separate transactions.

Based on the group’s assessment, the fair value and the stand-alone selling prices of the services are broadly
similar. Therefore, the group does not expect the application of IFRS 15 to result in significant differences in the
timing of revenue recognition for these services.

iii, Construction contracts

Contract revenue currently includes the initial amount agreed in the contract plus any variations in contract
work, claims and incentive payments, to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue and can be
measured reliably. When a claim or variation is recognised, the measure of contract progress or contract price is
revised and the cumulative contract position is reassessed at each reporting date.

IFRS 16 Leases

Under this IFRS 16, leases will be brought onto companies’ balance sheets, increasing the visibility of their
assets and liabilities. It further removes the classification of leases as either operating leases or finance leases
treating all leases as finance leases from the perspective of the lessee, thereby eliminating the requirement for
a lease classification test. The IFRS 16 guidance has an increased focus on who controls the asset and may
change which contracts are leases.

General impact of application of IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 introduces requirements with respect to lease accounting. It introduces significant changes to the
lessee accounting by removing the distinction hetween operating and finance leases and requiring the
recognition of a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets. In contrast to lessee accounting, the requirements for lessor
accounting have remained largely unchanged. Details of these requirements are described in Notes to the
financial statements. The impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 on the Group’s financial statements is described
below.

The group has applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach, without restatement of the
comparative information

Impact of the new definition of a lease

The change in definition of a lease mainly relates to the concept of control. IFRS 16 determines whether a
contract contains a lease on the basis of whether the customer has the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration,

The group applies the definition of a lease and related guidance set out in IFRS 16 to all lease contragts.
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3.17 »

3.18

3.19

Impact on Lessee Accounting

Former operating leases

IFRS 16 changes how the group accounts for leases previously classified as operating leases under IAS 17,
which were off-balance-sheet.

Applying IFRS 16, for all leases (except as noted below), the Group:

Recognizes right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the statement of financial position, initlally measured at the
present value of future lease payments;

Recognizes depreciation of right-of-use assets and interest on lease liabilities in the statement of profit or loss;
and separates the total amount of cash paid presented within financing activities in the statement of cash flows.

Under IFRS 16, right-of-use assets are tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
This replaces the previous requirement to recognize a provision for onerous lease contracts.

For short-term leases (lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low-value assets (such as personal
computers and office furniture), the group has opted to recognize a lease expense on a straight-line basis as
permitted by IFRS 16. This expense is presented within rent expenses in the statement of profit or loss.

Former finance leases

The main difference between IFRS 16 and IAS 17 with respect to assets formerly held under a finance lease is
the measurement of residual value guarantees provided by a lessee to a lessor. IFRS 16 requires that the group
recognizes as part of its lease liability only the amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, rather than the maximum amount guaranteed as required by IAS 17, This change did not have a
material effect on the group’s financial statements.

Impact on Lessor Accounting

IFRS 16 does not change substantially how a lessor accounts for leases. Under IFRS 16, a lessor continues to
classify leases as either finance leases or operating leases and account for those two types of leases differently.
However, IFRS 16 has changed and expanded the disclosures requirements, in particular regarding how a lessor
manages the risks arising from its residual interest in the leased assets.

Finance income and expenses

Finance income comprises interest income on fixed deposits and Short Notice Deposit (SND). Interest income is
recognized in profit or loss as it accrues, using the effective interest rate method.

Finance costs comprises interest expense on overdraft, LTR, term loan, short term borrowings and finance
lease. Ali finance expenses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

Foreign currency gains and losses on financial assets and financial liabllities are reported on a net basis as either
finance income or finance cost depending on whether foreign currency movements are in a net gain or net loss
position.

Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Taka at the foreign exchange rates prevailing on the date of
transaction. All monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at reporting date are translated
to Taka at the rates of exchange prevailing on that date. Resulting exchange differences arising on the
settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at the end of the reporting period are
recognised Iin the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as per International Accounting
Standard IAS-21 "The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates".

Taxation

Income tax expenses represents current tax and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax:

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous year,
Provisions for corporate income tax Is made following the rate applicable for companies as per Finance Act
2022,
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3.20

3.21

3.22

3.23

3.24

3.25

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax has been recognised In accordance with International Accounting Standard I1AS-12, Deferred tax Is
provided using the liability method for temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amount used for taxation purpose. Deferred tax Is determined
at the effective income tax rate prevailing at the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilised. Deferred
tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
the related tax benefit will be realised.

Earning per share

The Company presents basic and diluted (when dilution is applicable) earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary
shares. Basic EPS Is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company with the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, adjusted for the
effect of change in number of shares for bonus issue. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. However, dilution. of EPS is not applicable for these financial
statements as there was no dilutive potential ordinary shares during the relevant years.

Determination and presentation of operating segment
Detalls of product-wise segment reporting as required by IFRS-8 operating segments is followed.
Contingencies

Contingent liability

Contingent liabllity is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the entity.

Contingent liability should not be recognised in the financial statements, but may require disclosure. A provision
should be recognised in the year in which the recognition criteria of provision have been met.

. Contingent asset

Contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
entity.

A contingent asset must not be recognised. Only when the realisation of the related economic benefits is
virtually certain should recognition take place provided that it can be measured reliably because, at that point,
the asset is no longer contingent.

Statement of cash flows

Statement of cash flows is prepared under direct method in accordance with International Accounting Standard
IAS-7 "Statement of cash flows" as required by the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987,

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information about the Group's position at the reporting
date are reflected in the financial statements. Material events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed by way of note.

Comparatives and reclassification

Comparative information have been disclosed in respect of 2021 for all nhumerical information in the financial
statements and also the narrative and descriptive information when it is relevant for understanding of the
current year's financial statements,

To facilitate comparison, certain relevant balances pertaining to the previous year have been
rearranged/reclassified whenever considered necessary to confirm to current year's presentation.
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5.1

5.2

5.2.1

5.3

Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment (Note 4)
Investment Property (Note 5)

Allocation of Depreciation

Cost of sales (Note 26)

Administrative expenses (Note 5.2.1)
Marketing & selling expenses (Note 29)

Allocation of Administrative Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant & equipment (Note 28)
Depreciation on investment property (Note 28)

Disposal of property, plant and equipment

2022 2021

Taka Taka
442,304,739 451,806,678
221,918 221,918
442,526,657 452,028,596
404,399,955 416,656,484
31,297,603 29,748,902
6,829,099 5,623,210
442,526,657 452,028,596
31,075,685 29,526,984
221,918 221,918
31,297,603 29,748,902

2022
Particulars Original cost Accumulated Book value | Receipt against Profit/(loss) on
depreciation sales/insurance disposal
Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka
Office equipment 357,220 357,214 6 4,000 3,994
Furniture & fixture 372,578 372,567 11 18,560 18,549
Plant and machinery 1,512,451 123,487 1,388,964 - (1,388,964)
Vehicles 3,098,911 2,391,864 707,047 475,000 (232,047)
Tools and appliances 5,246,399 4,972,142 274,257 - (274,257)
Total 10,587,559 8,217,274 2,370,285 497,560 (1,872,725)
2021
Particulars Original Accumulated Book Receipt against | Profit/(loss) on
cost depreciation value sales/insurance disposal
Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka
Mobile plant 30,666,089 28,881,519 1,784,570 3,332,000 1,547,430
Office equipment 49,319,238 49,212,545 106,693 - (106,693)
Furniture & fixture 4,581,813 3,533,656 1,048,156 - (1,048,156)
Plant and machinery 62,007,839 58,338,508 3,669,331 - (3,669,331)
Communication equipment 2,151,070 2,044,836 106,234 - (106,234)
Tools and appliances 63,427 63,427 - - -
Total 148,789,476 142,074,492 6,714,984 3,332,000 (3,382,984)
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8

8.1

8.2

9

10

10.1

10.2

Capital Work-in-Progress

Balance as at 1 January
Add: Addition during the year (note 8.1)

Less: Transfer to property, plant & equipment during the year (note 8.2)

Balance as at 31 December

Addition during the year

Bullding
Plant & machinery
Others

Items transferred from capital work in progress to property, plant & equipment

Buiiding
Plant & machinery
Others

Inventories

Raw materials
Less : Provision for slow moving & obsolete inventories

Stores and consumables spares and packing
Less: Write off for stores and spares

Finished goods (net of net realizable value adjustment) *
Less : Provision for slow moving & obsolete inventories

Work-in-process
Goods-in-transit

*Finished goods exciude provision of net realizable value BDT. 25,977,522,

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables (Note 10.1)

Accrued interest (Note 10,2)
Other receivable

Trade receivables

Recelvables from local sales

Less: Provision of impairment loss on trade receivable:
Unrelated parties
Related parties

Accrued interest

Interest accrued on Fixed Deposit Receipt

28

2022 2021
Taka Taka
17,713,837 56,636,694
306,335,970 96,626,942
324,049,807 153,263,636
168,344,769 135,549,799
155,705,038 17,713,837
15,264,180 24,938,333
273,363,820 61,065,396
17,707,970 10,623,213
306,335,970 96,626,942
14,944,895 27,243,865
138,247,010 97,667,721
15,152,864 10,638,213
168,344,769 135,549,799

1,616,409,488

1,330,068,854

27,390,319 17,729,507
1,589,019,169 1,312,339,347
1,099,615,246 896,238,370

45,658,898 53,019,381
1,053,956,348 843,218,989

587,936,012 584,786,606
10,193,909 15,720,612
577,742,103 569,065,994
72,294,867 59,359,055
111,557,341 205,812,555
3,404,569,828 2,989,795,940

1,523,479,675

1,220,402,229

1,523,479,675

1,220,402,229

1,094,375 6,554,976
- 48,844
1,524,574,050 1,227,006,049

1,535,563,513

1,229,557,415

6,039,333 2,581,204
6,044,505 6,573,982
1,523,479,675 1,220,402,229
1,094,375 6,554,976
1,094,375 6,554,976




2022 2021

Taka Jaka
11 Advance, deposit and prepayments
Advances:
Employees 354,500 298,000
Purchase of land and others 18,037,873 10,017,270
Suppliers against materials and services 60,283,423 68,049,896
78,675,796 78,365,166
Security and other deposits: v
Titas gas 71,833,050 69,752,450
Mymensingh Palli Bidyut Samity-2 1,955,000 1,955,000
VAT and Supplementary duty (Note-11.1) 2,123,789 2,191,784
Deposited with income tax authority 79,320,962 79,320,962
Deposited with VAT authority 34,345,289 58,361,240
Display center and others 1,312,000 2,372,000
Other deposits 1,494,626 1,494,626
192,384,716 215,448,062
Prepayments:
Showroom, warehouse and office rent 15,774,000 -
Insurance and others 12,374,116 17,879,771
28,148,116 17,879,771
299,208,628 311,692,999
11,1 Supplementary duty & VAT
Balance as at 1 January 2,191,784 7,417,931
Add: Treasury deposit for SD & VAT purpose 9,170,717 9,533,102
11,362,501 16,951,033
Less: SD & VAT on sales 9,238,712 14,759,249
Balance as at 31 December 2,123,789 2,191,784
The above amount represents RAK Security and services (Pvt) Ltd.
12 Advance Income Tax
Balance as at 1 January 3,865,788,064 3,588,659,675
Add: Paid during the year 234,352,607 277,128,389
Balance as at 31 December (Note - 12,1) 4,100,140,671 3,865,788,064
12.1 payment for the year
Income year
Year 2022 215,539,721 -
Year 2021 273,987,480 255,174,594
Year 2020 130,950,084 130,950,084
Year 2019 280,949,748 280,949,748
Year 2018 314,338,282 314,338,282
Year 2017 344,518,556 344,518,556
Year 2016 291,375,845 291,375,845
Year 2015 187,267,285 187,267,285
Year 2014 291,694,002 291,694,002
Year 2013 389,651,054 389,651,054
Year 2012 334,263,453 334,263,453
Year 2011 328,701,317 328,701,317
Year 2010 265,532,626 265,532,626
Year 2009 218,091,876 218,091,876
Year 2008 85,378,847 85,378,847
Year 2007 124,813,161 124,813,161
Year 2006 23,087,333 23,087,333
4,100,140,671 3,865,788,064
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2022 2021
Taka Taka
13 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand 4,940,100 2,606,103
Cash at banks
Standard Chartered Bank (current account - 01-6162940-01, 01-3767272-01 - BDT) 48,008,704 98,519,046
BRAC Bank Ltd. (current account - 1530201731248001 - BDT) 7,029,098 15,126,914
Citibank N.A. (current account - G0100001200262018 - BDT) 143,529 149,989
Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd. (current account -117-110-12733,117-110-4311,117,110.23474 BDT) 2,224,092 1,628,655
Standard Chartered Bank (ERQ - 42-6162940-01 - USD) 1,305,563 4,648,910
Standard Chartered Bank (Margin money account) 11,369,665 16,608,637
United Commercial Bank Ltd, (SND account - 0831301000000164 BDT) 19,582,657 31,825,028
Standard Chartered Bank (SND account - 02-3767272-01 - BDT) 376,147 54,866
Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd. (SND account - 117-120-589, 117-120-330,117-120.2550 - BDT) 64,575,111 141,614,772
Prime Bank Ltd. (SND - 2125316004690 - BDT) 5,163,335 13,135,435
Eastern Bank Ltd. (CD account - 1132040363287, 1041060507936 - BDT) 1,187,158 587,252
Dhaka Bank Ltd (SND - 102.150.274- BDT)) 12,724,019 27,682,861
Commerclal Bank of Ceylon (CD-2817000776 - BDT.) - 5,739
Dhaka Bank Ltd (CD - 204100000019318- BDT)) 337,606 1,241,296
Commercial Bank of Ceylon (SND-2817000777 - BDT.) 36,099,416 60,071,855
Commercial Bank of Ceylon (ERQ-1806012366 - USD.) 1,167,570 4,308,029
Meghna Bank Ltd. (SND 1112-13500000004 - BDT) 18,037,173 24,494,840
Midland Bank Ltd. (SND 0006-1070000015, 0006-1060000043 - BDT) 323,664,743 171,763,920
Eastern Bank Ltd. (SND account - 1041360507944 - BDT) 76,971,089 71,777,074
Eastern Bank Ltd. (Margin Money account) 685,732 4,681,650
Commerclal Bank of Ceylon (Margin Money account) 331,882 53,212
630,984,289 689,979,980
IPO bank account
Citibank N.A, (RAK-IPO Central Account - G010001200262022 - BDT) 1,686,673 1,685,806
Citibank N.A, (RAK-IPO-NRB Subscription - G0100001200262042 - USD) 3,919,501 3,919,501
Citibank N.A, (RAK-IPO-NRB Subscription - G0100001200262026 - EURO) 153,606 153,606
Citibank N.A, (RAK-IPO-NRB Subscription - G0100001200262034 - GBP) 126,599 126,599
5,886,379 5,885,512
Dividend bank account
BRAC Bank {Current - 1510201731248001 - BDT) - 2010 2,832,666 2,848,356
BRAC Bank {Current - 1513201731248001 - BDT) - 2011 1,096,576 1,112,266
SCB (SND - 02-6162940-02- BDT) - 2012 176,153 180,227
SCB (SND - 02-6162940-03- BDT) - 2013 321,365 337,376
SCB (SND - 02-6162940-04- BDT) - 2014 - 3,862
SCB (SND - 02-6162940-05- BDT) - 2015 40,449 44,581
SCB (SND - 02-6162940-06- BDT) - 2016 7,170 11,317
SCB (SND - 02-6162940-07- BDT) - 2017 1,133 5,283
SCB (SND - 02-6162940-08- BDT) - 2018 - 1,925,267
SCB (SND - 02-6162940-09- BDT) - 2019 6,099,271 6,576,189
SCB (SND - 02-6162940-10- BDT) - 2020 3,179,172 3,630,950
SCB (SND - 02-6162940-11- BDT) - 2021 3,070,463 -
16,824,418 16,675,674
Investment in Fixed Deposit Receipt (FDR)
SCB - 762,080
BRAC Bank Ltd. - 50,000,000
Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd. - 400,000,000
Eastern Bank Ltd, 262,139,105 505,745,315
Dhaka Bank Ltd. 300,000,000 550,000,000
Commercial bank of Ceylon 55,000,000 55,000,000
617,139,105 1,561,507,395
1,275,774,291 2,276,654,664
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2022 2021
Taka Taka
Share Capital
Authorised :
600,000,000 ordinary shares of Taka 10/- each 6,000,000,000 6,000,000,000
Issued, subscribed, called and paid up :
427,968,701 ordinary shares of Taka 10/- each 4,279,687,010 4,279,687,010
Percentage of shareholdings : 2022 2021
% Taka % Taka
RAK Ceramics PISC, UAE 68.13 2,915,864,310 68.13 2,915,864,310
S.A.K. Ekramuzzaman 3.95 168,958,240 3.95 168,958,240
Other Sponsors 0.00 1,660 0.00 1,660
General Public 27.92 1,194,862,800 27.92 1,194,862,800
100.00 4,279,687,010 100.00 4,279,687,010

The company was Incorporated on 26" of November 1998 with pald up capital of BDT 1,000 and subsequently was Issued ordinary shares
including bonus shares in several dates I.e. 30 September 2000, 30 October 2005, 15 June 2009, 28 July 2009, 31 January 2010, 24 May 2010,
20 March 2011, 15 April 2012, 10 April 2013, 02 April 2014, 29 March 2017, 18 April 2018 and 09 Aprll 2019,

Mr, SAK Ekramuzzaman pledged 14,670,215 no of shares out of his total holding of 16,895,824 no of shares.

Classification of shareholders by holding

Shareholders' range

Number of shareholders

Number of shares

2022 2021 2022 2021

01-499 shares 17,249 16,571 4,042,747 4,007,328
500 to 5,000 shares 8,179 6,107 13,158,647 9,667,706
5001 to 10,000 shares 926 645 7,005,165 4,753,914
10,001 to 20,000 shares 486 351 7,117,059 5,125,053
20,001 to 30,000 shares 154 116 3,901,900 2,852,640
30,001 to 40,000 shares 76 64 2,717,389 2,260,040
40,001 to 50,000 shares 65 38 3,061,080 1,763,948
50,001 to 100,000 shares 98 73 6,955,385 5,366,610
100,001 to 1,000,000 shares 81 90 24,464,289 28,132,218
1,000,001 to 1,000,000,000 Shares 15 17 355,545,040 364,039,244

27,329 24,072 427,968,701 427,968,701

Share premium

On 31 January, 2010, company Issued 10,000,000 ordinary shares in favor of Institutional shareholder and employees per share BDT. 40 (include
BDT. 30 as premium). On 24 May, 2010 Company again issued 34,510,000 ordinary shares through IPO per share BDT. 48 (include BDT. 38 as

premium), Details reconciliation shown below:

2022 2021
No, of shares Share premium (per share) Taka Taka
10000000 30 300,000,000 300,000,000
34510000 38 1,311,380,000 1,311,380,000

Less : Share Issue expenses

Retained earnings (Reserve and surplus)

Balance as on 1 January
Add ; Profit during the year

tess: Dividend declared during the year
Balance as on 31 December

Detail movement for reserve and surplus was shown under statement of changes in equity.

31

1,611,380,000
137,732,021

1,611,380,000
137,732,021

1,473,647,979

1,473,647,979

1,747,192,779
671,585,497

1,269,975,797
905,185,683

2,418,778,276
(534,960,876)

2,175,161,480
(427,968,701)

1,883,817,400

1,747,192,779
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19.1

2022 20231

Taka Taka
Deferred tax liabllities
Balance as at 1 January 139,829,250 191,761,301
Less : Deferred tax (income)/expenses (31,770,547) (51,932,051)
Balance as at 31 December 108,058,703 139,829,250
Carrylng amount Taxable/
on the date of Tax base (deductible)
statement of temporary
financial position difference
Taka Taka Taka
As at 31 December 2022
Property, plant and equipment (Excluding land and others) 2,191,768,732 1,654,353,913 537,414,819
Trade receivable 1,532,613,442 1,544,697,280 (12,083,838)
Inventorles 3,349,411,095 3,412,972,845 {63,561,750)
Right of use assets 25,127,649 - 25,127,649
Lease Habllity (18,583,247) - (18,583,247)
Net taxable temporary difference 468,313,633
Deferred tax llability (applying applicable tax rate for individual company) 108,058,703
As at 31 December 2021
Property, plant and equipment (Exciuding land and others) 2,410,027,9594 1,750,469,029 659,558,965
Trade recelvable 1,226,424,016 1,235,579,202 (9,155,186)
Inventories 2,945,904,573 3,001,580,552 (55,675,979)
Right of use assets 13,852,546 - 13,852,546
Lease liability (9,714,554) - (9,714,554)
Net taxable temporary difference 598,865,791
Deferred tax liabllity (applying applicable tax rate for individual company) 139,829,250
Employees benefits payable
2022
Provident fund Gratuity fund Total

Taka Taka Taka
Balance as at 1 January - - -
Add: Provision made during the year 75,861,432 28,029,345 103,890,777

75,861,432 28,029,345 103,890,777
Less: Payments made to fund during the year 75,861,432 28,029,345 103,890,777

Balance as at 31 December -

Forfeited amount of provident fund amounting to BDT, 833,466 for the year 2022 has been adjusted with provision and payment.

2021
Provident fund Gratuity fund Total
Taka Taka Taka
Balance as at 1 January - - -
Add: Provision made during the year 67,435,963 38,368,823 105,804,785
67,435,963 38,368,823 105,804,785
Less: Payments made to fund during the year 67,435,963 38,368,823 105,804,785

Balance as at 31 December -

Forfeited amount of provident fund amounting to BDT. 1,195,599 for the year 2021 has been adjusted with provision and payment.

Borrowlings

Short-term borrowings
Balance as at 31 December

372,805,793 430,408,117
372,805,793 430,408,117

Borrowlngs by maturlty

At 31 December 2022 < i year 1-2 years 2-5 years Total

Short-term borrowings 372,805,793 - - 372,805,793
372,805,793 - - 372,805,793

At 31 December 2021 < 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years Total

Short-term borrowings 430,408,117 - - 430,408,117
430,408,117 - - 430,408,117
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19.2 Facliitles detalis (Funded)

20

21

Bank Name of facllities Limit Utilisation Maturity Repayment Security - STL Security - LTL
sce - Revolvin 1) Corporate
Overdraft 50,000,000 9 From company's guarantee, 1) Specific charge
Short term foan 500,000,000 57,859,449 1807360 days from own source over plant,
B/L date 2) Hypothecation machinery and
Eastern 5 years with 1 year over stock & book  equipment of BMRE
Bank Ltd. Long term loan* 450,000,000 . moratorium period debts on a parri - projects.
Overdraft 30,000,000 - Revolving passu basis with
From company's other lenders.
Short term loan 425,000,000 235,015,037 180/360 days from  oun source 3) Demand
B/L date promissory note.
Dutch Overdraft 25,000,000 - Revolving
Bangla Bank
Ltd. Short term loan 90,000,000 . 180/360 days from From company's
o B/L date own source
gomkmerrclat Overdraft 35,000,000 . Revolving From company's
ank o own source
Ceylon pLc  Short term loan 550,000,000 79,930,407 180/360 days from

* The long term loan facllity limit approved in Board of Directors meetings dated July 20, 2022 to be utliized for the BMRE project of tlles plant.

Lease ilabllity

Non-current:
Lease liability
Less : Current portion of lease iability

Current:
Current portion of lease liabliity
31 December 2022

headul

B/L date

2022 2021
Taka Yaka
18,583,247 9,714,554
5,427,646 4,809,657
13,155,601 4,904,896
5,427,646 4,809,657

Lease liability

Balance as on 01

Decrease in fease

Balance as on 31

Particulars January 2022 Addition/(deletion) Payment Interest expenses liabllity December 2022
Display center 8,959,184 11,971,130 6,203,091 1,169,941 5,033,149 15,897,164
Accommodation Building 755,370 805,053 802,105 75,893 726,213 834,211
Warehouse - 1,880,142 105,265 76,995 28,270 1,851,871
9,714,554 14,656,325 7,110,461 1,322,829 5,787,632 18,583,247
31 December 2021
Lease liabllity schedule
Particuiars Bajf:::rsszgg f t Addition/(deletion) Payment Interest expenses Decri?:;!:?ylease ?)aelzgrszs; (2’323 11
Display center 13,054,447 113,255 5,291,767 1,083,249 4,208,518 8,959,184
Accommodation Bullding 742,131 729,106 783,158 67,291 715,867 755,370
13,796,578 842,361 6,074,925 1,150,540 4,924,385 9,714,554
Trade and other payables
Trade payables
Payable to local suppliers 144,065,549 185,069,082
Payable to foreign suppliers 222,739,944 306,722,614
Payable to service provider 71,856,030 68,742,282
Payable to C & F agent 62,174,471 49,038,384
500,835,994 609,572,362
Other payables
Tax deducted at source 18,039,481 24,500,151
Tax deducted at source on remuneration (Note-23.1) 7,099,944 8,807,367
Tax deducted at source on Incentive and bonus (Note-23) 7,263,075 4,603,182
VAT deducted at source 8,445,799 10,541,119
VAT and Supplementary duty payable (Note-21.1) 115,766,477 117,438,944
Unclaimed share application 20,061,956 20,061,956
Advance from customer against sales 7,663,680 9,745,981
Securlty deposit payable 2,075,814 2,018,224
Payable to employees 1,534,726 1,823,489
Payable to customer against claim 16,656,209 13,735,760
Provisional llabllitles - material & services 44,632,834 62,236,279
Payable against purchase of land (Note - 37) 298,137,675 -
547,377,670 275,512,452
1,048,213,664 885,084,814
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21,1 VAT and Supplementary duty (SD) payable

Opening Balance

Add: VAT and Supplementary duty on sales

Other payable

Less: Treasury deposlt for SO & VAT purpose

2022
Taka

117,438,944
2,512,675,861
211,101

2021
Taka

139,511,697
2,324,239,441

2,630,325,905

2,463,751,139

1,633,832,497

1,510,551,448

Rebate of input VAT 880,726,931 835,760,747
2,514,559,428 2,346,312,194
Balance as at 31 December 115,766,477 117,438,944
22 Unclaimed Dividend Payable 11,901,967 11,764,448
Year Dividend declared  TDS on dividend  Net dividend dstrioateg i 31 FUnd Tronsferred to (gg%sgéb:rtyeglﬂéﬁ
Dec 2022 2022
2010 345,110,250 60,198,297 284,911,953 274,257,528 10,654,425 -
2011 379,621,275 65,382,545 314,238,730 306,565,331 7,673,399 -
2012 417,583,403 27,344,749 390,238,653 386,535,373 3,703,280 -
2013 459,341,744 30,693,245 428,648,499 426,108,408 2,540,090 -
2014 842,126,528 60,654,665 781,471,863 776,464,072 5,007,791 -
2015 842,126,528 61,659,449 780,467,078 776,773,479 3,693,599 -
2016 673,701,222 48,745,089 624,956,133 620,752,883 4,203,250 -
2017 353,693,141 27,276,252 326,416,889 324,757,456 1,659,433 -
2018 389,062,456 29,888,903 359,173,553 357,227,075 1,946,478 -
2019 641,953,052 49,029,624 592,923,428 586,814,480 - 6,108,948
2020 427,968,701 32,747,652 395,221,049 392,398,879 - 2,822,171
2021 534,960,876 39,123,334 495,837,543 492,866,695 - 2,970,848
6,307,249,174 532,743,804 5,774,505,371 5,721,521,659 41,081,745 11,901,967
Dividend Fund Transferred to Undlstributed fund
Year Dividend declared TOS on dividend Net dividend distributed till 31 CMSF (BDT) as on 31 Dec
Dec 2021 2021
2010 345,110,250 60,198,297 284,911,953 274,257,528 10,654,425 -
2011 379,621,275 65,382,545 314,238,730 306,565,331 7,673,399 -
2012 417,583,403 27,344,749 390,238,653 386,535,373 3,703,280 -
2013 459,341,744 30,693,245 428,648,499 426,108,408 2,540,090 -
2014 842,126,528 60,654,665 781,471,863 776,464,072 5,007,791 -
2015 842,126,528 61,659,449 780,467,078 776,773,479 3,693,599 -
2016 673,701,222 48,745,089 624,956,133 620,752,883 4,203,250 -
2017 353,693,141 27,276,252 326,416,889 324,757,456 1,659,433 -
2018 389,062,456 29,888,903 359,173,553 357,224,527 - 1,949,026
2019 641,953,052 49,029,624 592,923,428 586,341,069 - 6,582,359
2020 427,968,701 32,747,652 395,221,049 391,987,987 - 3,233,062
5,772,288,298 493,620,470 5,278,667,828 5,227,768,113 39,135,267 11,764,448
23 Accrued expenses
Power and gas 45,724,712 42,359,243
Staff cost 116,913,361 132,239,271
Dealer's incentive and bonus 65,367,671 41,428,638
Audit fees 1,840,000 1,555,000
Professtonal charges 460,497 1,045,000
Interest on loans 7,598,906 2,440,939
Telephone 236,848 205,976
Frelght bill 1,750,586 676,640
Business promotion and advertisement 32,591,430 19,209,107
Hiring heavy equipment 1,660,994 1,506,239
Managing Director's remuneration (Note 23,1) 21,299,832 26,422,103
Worker's profit participation and welfare fund (Note 23.2) 45,079,009 55,919,793
Royalty and technical know-how fees (Note 23.3) 478,068,907 407,974,519
Others 14,653,834 25,229,974
833,246,587 758,212,444
23.1 Managing Director's remuneration
Balance as at 1 January 26,422,103 10,062,153
Add: Payable to Managing Director for the year 28,399,776 35,229,470
' 54,821,879 45,291,623
Less: Tax deducted at source during the year {Note 21) 7,099,944 8,807,367
Less: Pald to Managing Director during the year 26,422,103 10,062,153
Balance as at 31 December 21,299,832 26,422,103
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2922 2021

Taka Jaka
23.2 Worker's profit particlpation and welfare fund
Batance as at 1 January 55,919,793 22,816,672
Add: Contribution made to the fund during the year 45,079,009 55,919,793
100,998,802 78,736,465
Less: Payment made from the fund during the year 55,919,793 22,816,672
Balance as at 31 December 45,079,009 55,919,793
23.3 provision for royalty and technical know-how fees
Balance as at 1 Janvary 407,974,519 317,433,528
Add: Provision made during the year 70,094,388 90,540,991
Balance as at 31 December 478,068,907 407,974,519
24  provision for Income Tax
Balance as at 1 January 4,272,115,156 3,971,266,511
Add: Provision made during the year 249,833,799 300,848,645
Balance as at 31 December (Note 24.1) 4,521,948,955 4,272,115,156
24.1 Pprovision for income Tax
Income vear
Year 2022 249,833,799 -
Year 2021 300,848,645 300,848,645
Year 2020 137,014,355 137,014,355
Year 2019 296,420,303 296,420,303
Year 2018 316,355,666 316,355,666
Year 2017 346,089,883 346,089,883
Year 2016 . 302,798,649 302,798,649
Year 2015 323,397,728 323,397,728
Year 2014 377,885,822 377,885,822
Year 2013 362,336,361 362,336,361
Year 2012 339,211,366 339,211,366
Year 2011 326,685,215 326,685,215
Year 2010 ’ 348,965,691 348,965,691
Year 2009 266,823,984 266,823,984
Year 2008 147,117,914 147,117,914
Year 2007 80,163,573 80,163,573

4,521,948,855 4,272,115,156
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26

26.1

26.2

26.3

27

Sales

Gross sales from Ceramics product
Gross sales from Power generation
Gross sales from Security service

Less: ElimInation

Supplementary Duty

VAT

Discount

Commisston, Incentive and bonus
Net sales

Cost of sales

Materials consumed:

Opening inventory as at 1 January
Add: Purchase during the year

Less: Closing inventory as at 31 December

Manufacturing overhead:

Direct labour (note 26.1)

Direct expenses:

Power and gas

Repalrs and indirect materials (note 26.2)

Depreciation on property, plant & equipment (note 5.2)
Rovyalty and technical know-how/assistance fees *

Other production overhead (note 26,3)

Provision for slow moving & obsolete inventories (note 9)
Movement In stock

Direct labour

Salary & wages

Overtime

Bonus

Incentive

Temporary labour wages

Staff uniform, safety and welfare expenses
Gratulty

Employer's contribution to provident fund
Leave encashment .

Group life insurance

Compensation

Repairs and indirect materials
Stores, spares, repair & maintenance
Packing expenses

Other production overhead
Tour and travel expenses
Demurrage

Insurance

Hirlng charges and transportation
Write off for stores and spares
Other expenses

*Royalty has been calculated 8% on business profit as per Finance Act 2020,

Other income
Dividend income
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10,629,010,173

9,814,133,937

423,653,680 430,107,240
96,967,823 81,589,706
11,149,631,676 10,325,830,883
414,579,652 412,133,652
1,068,911,395 995,615,214
1,453,214,279 1,343,383,475
13,455,579 5,910,710
746,005,277 717,651,147
7,453,465,494 _ 6,851,136,685
1,312,339,347 562,104,748

3,339,339,803

3,365,056,879

4,651,679,150
1,589,019,169

3,927,161,627
1,312,339,347

3,062,659,981

2,614,822,280

681,862,234 649,384,487
359,835,413 322,438,008
826,456,415 770,632,074
404,399,955 416,656,484
70,094,388 90,540,991
93,246,628 95,725,214
4,134,109 (3,860,575)
(19,144,653) (138,061,280)
5,483,544,470 _ 4,818,277,683
470,246,000 422,077,810
41,862,228 40,027,676
44,273,390 63,647,147
42,498 375,504
63,830,005 61,431,115
1,380,726 848,136
19,630,212 27,209,389
25,673,570 23,071,166
12,029,754 7,706,607
2,472,578 2,820,500
421,273 169,437
681,862,234 649,384,487
405,154,135 412,961,053
421,302,280 357,671,021

826,456,415 770,632,074
2,566,673 5,081,308
8,349,282 3,348,351

25,652,960 23,463,569
7,423,206 5,145,760
45,658,898 53,019,381
3,595,609 5,666,845
93,246,628 95,725,214
100 50

100 50
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28.1

28.2

28.3

28.4

29

29.1

Administrative expenses

Staff cost (note 28.2)

Annual General Meeting expenses

Telephone and postage

Office repair and maintenance (note 28.,3)
Registration and renewal

Security and guard expenses

Electricity, gas and water

Depreciation on property, plant & equipment (note 5.2.1)
Depreciation on investment property (note 5.2.1)
Depreciation on right of use assets {note 6.1)
Amortization (note 7)

Legal and professional fees

Vehicle repair and maintenance

Rent, rate and tax

Loss on retirement of assets (note 5.3)

IT expenses

General Service

Donatlon

Managing Director's remuneration (note 28.4)
Others

Impairment loss on trade receivables
Unrelated parties
Related parties

New classification of financial assets shown in note 36.1(b) as per IFRS 9.

Staff cost

Salary & wages

Bonus

Incentive

Gratuity

Employer's contribution to provident fund
Leave encashment

Group life insurance

Canteen and conveyance expenses

Staff uniform, safety and welfare expenses
Travelling expenses

Compensation

Medical expenses

Accommodation expenses

Other employee benefit

2022 2021

Taka Taka
193,947,545 184,940,010
1,941,291 1,500,500
10,742,187 7,495,489
6,447,904 5,293,093
1,342,050 2,509,315
210,764 268,809
5,897,032 6,981,039
31,075,685 29,526,984
221,918 221,918
730,522 714,217
1,349,813 1,556,602
15,410,904 13,093,065
17,525,520 11,894,753
4,304,999 4,444,213
1,872,725 3,382,984
4,629,673 3,206,443
4,962,745 5,713,979
2,620,836 3,487,111
28,399,776 35,229,470
14,348,721 11,784,130
347,982,610 333,244,125
3,458,129 189,138
(529,477) 86,394
7,928,652 275,532
138,625,187 126,714,394
12,531,984 18,383,801
777,101 1,225,194
4,196,428 7,584,905
7,703,860 6,894,272
4,233,691 2,163,674
791,147 784,799
17,603,010 11,434,091
3,590,935 3,184,395
2,214,271 1,686,538
246,184 1,526,707
462,296 1,305,449
971,451 1,816,103
- 235,688
193,047,545 183,940,010

Accommodation expenses Includes rent expenses for short term lease for BDT. 156,000 and related government levis wherever applicable. Details of
the short term lease Is shown In note 35. No low value item exists at the reporting period.

Office repair & maintenance
Repalrs office equipment
Office maintenance

Managing Director's remuneration
Provision made during the period

Managing Director's remuneration represents provision made 3% of net profit before tax of RAK Ceramics (Bangladesh) Ltd.

Marketing & selling expenses

Staff cost (note 29.1)

Advertisement

Freight and transportation

Compensation to customers

Business promotion

Depreciation on property, plant & equipment (note 5,2)
Depreciation on right of use assets (note 6,1)
Showroom, office & house rent

Sample expenses

Tour, travel and others

Staff cost

Salary & wages

Bonus

Incentive

Gratuity

Employer's contribution to provident fund
Leave Encashment

Group life insurance

Conveyance & food expenses

Staff uniform, safety and welfare expenses

1,558,993 416,558
4,888,911 4,876,535
6,447,904 5,293,093
28,399,776 35,229,470
28,399,776 35,229,470
119,734,188 89,858,017
47,539,985 12,294,710
328,668,292 300,626,263
9,386,717 22,280,195
67,785,066 62,672,470
6,829,099 5,623,210
8,280,700 7,458,852
1,271,536 1,549,622
20,080,439 14,923,161
14,343,675 6,456,607
§23,919,697 £33,744,007
69,285,302 54,627,697
6,216,799 7,607,299
13,556,819 10,251,516
4,202,702 3,574,529
4,136,553 3,154,744
1,186,678 1,060,630
394,162 359,027
11,492,718 9,092,963
9,262,455 130,512
119,734,188 89,858,917
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2022
Taka

2021
Taka

29.2 Salary & wages under staff cost (note no, 26.1, 28.2 & 29.1) includes employee contribution to provident fund for BDT, 25,673,570, BDT. 7,703,860

30

31

32

33

34

35

& BDT. 4,136,553,
Finance income

Interest on bank account (SND)
Interest on fixed deposits

Finance expenses

Interest expenses against loan

Interest expenses against lease liability
Forelgn exchange loss

Bank charges

Contribution to worker's profit participation and welfare fund
Provision made during the year

Income tax expenses

Accounting profit (PBT as per Individual company)

Add: Inadmissible depreclation allowance for separate consideration:
Accounting Depreciation of Fixed Assets

Add: Inadmissible expenses / allowances as per ITO, 1984:

Business promotion expenses

Royalty expenses

Sample expenses

Amortization expenses

Depreciation on Right of Use Assets (ROUA)

Interest on lease liabllity

Provision for slow moving inventories

NRV Provision on inventories

Deduct: Tax base depreciation of Fixed Assets (as per 3rd Schedule of ITO,1984):

Admissible expenses as per ITO,1984:
Rent expenses

Deduct: Dividend income

Taxable profit

Applicable tax rate for Individual company
On Business income
On Dividend income

Tax expenses as per applicable tax rate for individual company :
Business income

" Dividend income

Current Tax Liability

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Profit before tax

Current tax expenses
Deferred tax expenses
Total tax expenses

Expected income tax using applicable tax rate for individual company
Tax on non-deductible expenses

Effective current tax
Effective deferred tax

Short term lease expenses

Nature of the lease
Rented accommodation
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7,642,696 8,553,389
41,269,518 36,263,820
48,912,214 44,817,200
25,253,694 4,553,264
1,322,829 1,150,540
79,489,878 2,578,334
3,208,102 2,108,185
109,274,503 10,390,323
45,079,009 55,919,793
45,079,009 55,919,793
935,648,667  1,176,602,382
442,526,657 452,028,596
1,378,175,324  1,628,630,978
13,737,385 13,027,044
270,752 48,662
9,754,600 4,945,668
1,259,813 1,554,136
9,011,222 8,173,069
1,322,829 1,150,540
4,134,109 -
3,751,662 -
43,242,372 78,899,119

1,421,417,696

(307,779,495)

(12,127,538)
(45,949,800)

1,657,530,097

(329,374,048)

(11,600,296)
(22,479,900)

1,147,460,464

1,339,035,653.

As per applicable tax rate for individual company

20% 20%
240,633,819 296,348,655
9,199,980 4,499,980
249,833,799 300,848,645
2022 2021
Taka Taka
% 889,648,867 Y% 1,154,102,481
28.08% 249,833,799 26.07% 300,848,645
-3.57% (31,770,547) -4,50% (51,932,051)
24.51% 218,063,252 21,57% 248,916,594
23.86% 212,305,075 23.28% 268,695,218
4.2% 37,528,724 2.8% 32,153,427
28.08% 249,833,799 26.07% 300,848,645
-3.57% (31,770,547) -4,50% (51,932,051)
24.51% 218,063,252 21.57% 248,916,594
2022 2021
Taka Taka
Lease term Allocation Rent Payment Rent Payment
<1 year Admin 156,000 156,000
156,000 156,000
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Financlal risk management

The 't has overall resp y for the and ght of the Company's sk management framework. The Company's risk management policies are established to /dentify and analyze the risks faced
by the Company, to set appropriate risk limlts and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits, Risk management policles, procedures and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes In market conditions and
the Company's activities, The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financlal Instruments.

* Credit risk

* Uquidity risk

» Market risk

Credit risk

Credit risk Is the risk of financial loss to the Company if 8 client or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
recelvables,

)5, and arises p pally from the Company's trade receivables and other

Management has a credit policy In place and the exposure to credit risk Is monitored on an ongoing basis. In monitoring credit risk, debtors are grouped according to thelr risk profile, 1.e. thelr legal status, financial condition
etc, Trade & other receivable are mainly related to recelvables from dealers, recelvables from export sales, clalm recelvables, accrued Interest and other recelvables, The Company's exposure to credit risk on accounts
recelvables Is malnly Influenced by the Individual payment characteristics of customers,

The maximum exposure to credit risk Is represented by the carrylng amount of each financial asset In the statement of financial positton,

Exposure to credlt risk

The carrying amount of financlal assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

usp
As at 31 Dec 2022

usp
As at 31 Dec 2021

Amounts In Taka
As at 31 Dec 2022 As at 31 Dec 2021

Trade recelvables

Customer-Local - - 1,523,479,675 1,220,402,229
- - 1,523,479,675 1,220,402,229

Other receivables
Accrued Interest 1,094,375 6,554,976
Others - 48,844
1,094,375 6,603,820
Cash equivalents 1,270,834,191 2,274,048,561

Impact of IFRS 9

The following table and the accompanying notes betow explaln the original measurement categortes under IAS 39 and the new measurement categories under IFRS 9 for each class of the financial assets as at 3t December
2022,

Carrylng amount Carrying amount  [mpairment loss (Refer

Financlal assets Note Classlfication under IAS 39 Classlfication under IFRS 9 under 1AS 39 under IFRS 9 note 10.1)
Trade recelvable-unrelated 10,1 Loan & recelvable Amortized cost 641,704,385 635,665,052 6,039,333
Trade recelvable-related 10,1 Loan & recelvable Amortized cost 893,859,127 887,814,622 6,044,505
Cash & cash equivalent 13 Loan & recelvable Amortized cost 1,270,834,191 1,270,834,191 °

The above table provides Information ECLs tii date, Impalrment provision tiil Dec 2021 was TK. 9,155,186 and provision made during the year Is Tk, 2,928,652,

Trade recelvables that were classified as foans and recelvables under 1AS 39 are now classlfied at amortised cost. Impalrment over these receivables was recognised In the current year on transition to IFRS 9.
Cash and cash equivalents that were classifled as loans and receivables under IAS 39 are now classified at amortised cost.

Impalrment loss allowance has not been considered on other recefvables and bank balances because business is confident to recover the full amount from the party.

Agelng of receivables

The aaeina of trade recelvables as at 31 December was:
Amounts in Taka

As at 31 Dec 2021

As at 31 Dec 2022

Not past due 1,328,198,931 1,149,687,410
0-90 days past due 119,056,142 34,881,457
91-180 days past due 43,494,110 27,869,771
181-365 days past due 29,094,918 5,342,346
over 365 days past due 3,635,574 2,621,245

1,523,479,675 1,220,402,229
Liquldity risk

Uquidity risk Is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due, The Company's approach to managing Hauidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that It will always have sufficient
tiquldity to meet its liabilities when become due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation.

The Company ensures that It has sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet expected operational expenses, including financial obligations through preparation of the cash flow forecast, prepared based on timeline of
payment of the financial obligation and accordingly arrange for sufficient liquidity/fund to make the expected payment within due date, Moreover, the Company seeks to malntain short term fines of credit with scheduled
commerclal banks to ensure payment of obligations In the event that there Is insufficient cash to make the required payment. The requirement Is determined in advance through cash flows profections and credit lines facilities

with banks are negotiated accordingly,
The following are the contractual maturities of financia! llabllities of the Company:

Trade and other payables
Short term borrowing

Trade and other payables
Short term borrowing

Asat 3% Dec 2022

Carrying amount

Contractual cash  Within 12 months More than 12

flows or {ess months
Taka Taka Taka Taka
1,048,213,664 1,048,213,664 1,048,213,664 -
372,805,793 372,805,793 372,805,793 -
1,421,019,457 1,421,019,457 1,421,019!457 -

As at 31 Dec 2021

Carrying amount

Contractual cash Within 12 months Hore than 12

flows or less months
Taka Taka Taka Taka
885,084,814 885,084,814 885,084,814 -
430,408,117 430,408,117 430,408,117 -

1,315,492,931
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1,315,492,931 1,315,492,931 -




36,3 Market risk

a)

b)

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and Interest rates will affect the Company's income or the value of its holding of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management |s to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, whife optimizing the return.

Currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk on certaln revenues and purchase of raw material, spare parts, accessories and capltal ltem. Majority of the company's forelgn currency purchase are denominated in USD and EURO.
All the export proceeds are receipt in USD, 15% of export proceeds are crediting to export retentlon quota account and rest of the 85% are converted to Taka and crediting to company's current account,

! Exposure to currency risk

The Company's exposure to forelgn currency risk was as follows based on notional amounts (In Taka):

As at 31 Dac 2022 As at 31 Dec 2021
AED GBP usp EURO AED fei:d usp EURO
Forelgn currency denominated assets
Cash at bank - - 24,486 - - - 105,562 -
- - 24,486 - B 105,562 -
Asg at 31 Dec 2022 Asat 31 Dec 2021
AED GBP usp EURQ AED GBP usp EURQ
Forelgn currency denominated liabilities
Trade payables 4,442 238,847 1,124,326 699,445 60,550 249,274 2,840,637 322,266
Short term borrowings - - 3,463,724 158,080 - - 5,013,490 -
Royalty & Technical Fees - - 4,659,391 - - - 4,752,178 -
4,442 238,847 9,247,441 857,525 60,550 249,274 12,606,305 322,266
Net exposure (4,442) _ (238,847)  (9,222,955)  (857,525) (60,550) (249,274) (12,500,743) (322,266)
The Company has foreign exchange loss of To 79,489,878 during the year ended 31 Dec 2022 (31 Dec 2021: Exchange gain To 2,578,334).
The following significant exchange rates have been applied:
Exchange ) verage
31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021
Taka Taka
AED 27,7608 23,2942
GBP 123.8037 115.4890
usp 101.8017 85,3500
EURO 108.6137 97.0488
t Foreign rate Y ysls for foreign currency expenditures
A strengthening or weakening of the Taka, as Indicated below, against the AED, GBP, USD, EURO at 31 Dec would have Increased/(decreased) profit or Joss by the amounts shown below.
As at 31 Dec 2022 As at 31 Dec 2021
Profit or (loss) Profit or (loss)
Strenqthe| eake| Stre Weake
Taka
At 31 Dec
AED (3 percent movement) (137} 129 (1,873) 1,764
GBP (3 percent movement) (7,387} 6,957 (7,710) 7,260
USD (3 percent movement) (285,246) 268,630 (386,621) 364,099
{26,521) 24,976 (9,967) 9,386

EURQ (3 percent movement)
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk Is the risk that arises due to changes In Interest rates on borrowings. The Company Is not significantly exposed to fluctuation In interest rates as company has not entered into any type of derivative
instrument In order to hedge interest rate risk as at the reporting date.

Profile

At the reporting date, the Interest rate profile of the Company's Interest bearing financial instruments was:
Carrying amount

As at As at
31 Pec 2022 31 Dec 2021
Taka Taka
Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets
Investment In FDR 617,139,105 1,561,507,395
Cash at banks 653,695,085 712,541,165
Financial Habilities
Short term borrowing 372,805,793 430,408,117
Fair value of financlal assets and Habilities of the Company together with carrying amount shown In the statement of financial position are as follows:
As at 31 Dec 2022 As at 31 Dec 2021
Carrying.amount Ealr valug Carrying amount Ealr vaiue
Jaka Taka Taka Taka
Financlal assets
Held to maturity assets
Investment In FDR 617,139,105 617,139,105 1,561,507,395 1,561,507,395
Loans and receivables
Trade recelvables 1,523,479,675 1,523,479,675 1,220,402,229 1,220,402,229
Other recelvables 1,094,375 1,094,375 6,603,820 6,603,820
Cash equivalents 1,270,834,191 1,270,834,191 2,274,048,561 2,274,048,561
Financial {iablitles
Llabllities carried at amortised costs
Trade and other payables 1,048,213,664 1,048,213,664 885,084,814 885,084,814
Short term borrowing 372,805,793 372,805,793 430,408,117 430,408,117
Interest rates used for determining amortised cost
The interest rates used to discount estimated cash flows, when applicable were as follows:
Investment in FDR (local currency/BDT) 1.50%-6.75% 1,50%-5.00%
Bank overdraft (local currency/BDT) 9% 9%
9% 9%

Short term bank loan {local currency/BDT)

Short term bank loan {foreign currency/USD) SOFR+2.00%-3.50%  LIBOR+2.00%-3.50%
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41.1

202 2021
Taka Taka
Calculation of Earnings per share (EPS)
Calculation of earnings per share (EPS) is as under:
(a) Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 671,585,497 905,185,683
(b) No. of ordinary equity shares 427,968,701 427,968,701
(c) Weighted average no. of equity shares outstanding (Note 39.1) 427,968,701 427,968,701
Earnings per share (EPS) for the year (a+c) 1.57 2,12
Diluted earnings per share for the year (a-+c) 1.57 2.12

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

The weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year is the number of ordinary shares
outstanding at the beginning of the year, adjusted by the number of ordinary shares issued during the year
multiplied by a time-weighting factor. The time-weighting factor is the number of days that the shares are
outstanding as a proportion of the total number of days in the year. The weighted average number of shares is
calculated by assuming that the shares have always been in issue. This means that they have been issued at
the start of the year presented as the comparative figures.

2022 2021

Outstanding shares 427,968,701 427,968,701
427,968,701 427,968,701

Diluted earning per share

No diluted earnings per share is required to be calculated for the year as there was no scope for dilution during
the year.

Reason of deviation of earnings per share:

Due to the revised and responsive business strategy taken by the management, sales are increased by 8.79%
from BDT. 6,851.14 MN to BDT. 7,453.47 MN, even though earning per share is decreased from BDT. 2.12 to
1.57 due to increase in gas price, significant volatile of foreign currency market, disruption of global supply
chain caused increase of all input raw material price and shipping freight. In addition, disruption of production
due to inadequate pressure of supplied gas from mid of August 2022 and sometimes no gas resulting increase
of production cost compare to previous year. Therefore, gross profit margin has been reduced from 29.67% to
26.43% and sales volume is not achieved as expected in the year 2022 due to the shortage of production.

Calculation of Net assets value per share

(a) Net assets value (Note 14, 15 & 16) 7,637,152,389 7,500,527,768
(b) Weighted average no. of equity shares outstanding (Note 39.1) 427,968,701 427,968,701
Net assets value per share (a+b) 17.85 17.53

Calculation of Net operating cash flow per share

(a) Net Cash flows from operating activities (Note 42) 619,417,650 582,857,689
(b) Welighted average no. of equity shares outstanding (Note 39.1) 427,968,701 427,968,701
Net operating cash flow per share (a+b) 1.45 1.36

Reason of deviation of net operating cash flow per share:

Due to the revised and responsive business strategy taken by the management, sales are increased by 8.79%
from BDT. 6,851.14 MN to BDT. 7,453.47 MN and registered improvement in cash flows from customers as well
as income tax payment has been reduced due to the reduction of profit before tax in the current year as
compared to last year which caused an increase in net operating cash flow per share from BDT 1.36 to BDT.
1.45,
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44.1

Reconciliation of operating cash flow: 2022 2021
Taka Taka

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation 889,648,867 1,154,102,481
Adjustment for:
Depreciation 451,537,879 460,201,666
Amortization 1,349,813 1,556,602
Advance rent adjustment (5,630,000) -
Loss on assets retirement 1,872,725 3,382,984
Foreign exchange loss 79,489,878 2,578,334
Finance expenses 29,784,625 7,811,989
Finance income (48,912,214) (44,817,209)
Other income (100) (50)

1,399,141,474 1,584,816,796
Increase/decrease in trade and other receivables (303,028,603) (223,161,925)
Increase/decrease in inventories (414,773,888) (962,805,560)
Increase/decrease in trade and other payables 164,788,577 452,583,378
Cash generated from operating activities 846,127,561 851,432,689
Interest received from bank deposit 7,642,696 8,553,389
Income tax paid (234,352,607) (277,128,389)
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities 619,417,650 582,857,689

Contingent liabilities

There are contingent liabilities on account of unresolved disputed corporate tax assessments and VAT claims by
the authority aggregating to Tk 545,206,680 (31 Dec 2021: Tk 1,130,710,423). Considering the merits of the
cases, it has not been deemed necessary to make provisions for all such disputed claims.

There is also contingent liability in respect of outstanding letters of credit of Tk 330,070,678 (31 Dec 2021: Tk
424,808,058) and letter of guarantee of Tk 145,690,514 (31 Dec 2021: Tk 139,459,353).

The company issued one corporate guarantee value BDT. 70 Million (SCB) in favour of subsidiary company to
avail loan from banks. Outstanding loan against the said corporate guarantee are nil at 31 December 2022.
Therefore no credit loss allowances is expected,

Events after the reporting period
Declaration of dividend and date of Annual General Meeting (AGM)

The Board of Directors of RAK Ceramics (Bangladesh) Ltd, in its meeting held on 25 January 2023, has
unanimously recommended cash dividend @ 10% of the paid capital of the company for the year ended 31
December 2022 equivalent to BDT 427,968,701 to be distributed as cash dividend among shareholders, which is
more than 30% of the current year profit. The dividend is subject to final approval by the shareholders at the
forthcoming 24th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the company which will be held on 30 March 2023,
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